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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Welcome to today's

          3  hearing of the City Council's Committee on

          4  Transportation. My name is John Liu, I have the

          5  privilege of chairing this Committee.

          6                 Today we have convened in order to

          7  consider three pieces of legislation: Proposed

          8  Intro. No. 205-A; Proposed Intro. No. 384-A; and

          9  Resolution No. 357.

         10                 The first item, Proposed Intro. No.

         11  205-A, represents a merger of two prior bills

         12  considered by this Committee; Intros No. 205 and

         13  210.

         14                 Both of these bills sought in

         15  different ways to mandate greater safeguard against

         16  the possibility of injury or death caused by

         17  electrical-related infrastructure in the City of New

         18  York.

         19                 The bills were introduced in response

         20  to the tragic death of Jodie Lane on January 16th,

         21  2004, when she was electrocuted after stepping on an

         22  electrically-charged metal plate on a sidewalk in

         23  Manhattan.

         24                 Following two hearings of this

         25  Committee on the subject of danger caused by
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          2  electrical-related infrastructure in the City, this

          3  Committee decided to merge the meritorious

          4  components of Intros No. 205 and 210. The result is

          5  proposed Intro. No. 205-A, which also incorporates

          6  many of the suggestions and recommendations of the

          7  witnesses who were kind enough to share their

          8  testimony with this Committee at the two earlier

          9  hearings.

         10                 Proposed Intro. No. 205-A is a

         11  legislative initiative that would enact certain

         12  requirements applicable to any entity responsible

         13  for the operation and maintenance of any piece of

         14  electrical-related infrastructure in New York City.

         15                 These requirements are designed to

         16  make these entities more vigilant about the safety

         17  of their equipment and infrastructure. Periodic

         18  inspections, repairs and reports would be mandated.

         19                 The City's Department of

         20  Transportation would be required to conduct random

         21  inspections of such infrastructure to ensure that

         22  the equipment is being maintained and repaired

         23  properly.

         24                 Additionally, a public safety

         25  educational campaign relating to potential
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          2  electrical dangers will be required. All these

          3  measures are aimed at ensuring that what happened to

          4  Jodie Lane does not happen to anybody else in our

          5  City.

          6                 The second item on today's agenda is

          7  proposed No. 384-A.

          8                 This Intro. represents the

          9  Committee's efforts to examine the fairness of New

         10  York State laws outside prohibition against the

         11  placement of glass or plastic coverings over license

         12  plates.

         13                 The Council seeks to narrow this

         14  prohibition only as it relates to parked vehicles,

         15  by asserting its power to regulate parking under

         16  provisions of the Section 642 of the Vehicle and

         17  Traffic Law.

         18                 The premise behind this bill is that

         19  a motorist should not receive a summons for

         20  obscuring information on a license plate that has no

         21  bearing on the identification of the vehicle.

         22                 This bill would allow a license plate

         23  on a motor vehicle to be placed within a metal or

         24  plastic frame, while the vehicle is parked, so long

         25  as the frame does not obstruct identifying
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          2  information on the license plate.

          3                 The bill would define identifying

          4  information, as a vehicle distinctive license plate

          5  number, the state of issuance of such license plate

          6  and any designation of a vehicle class required to

          7  be displayed on such license plate.

          8                 Proposed Intro. No. 384-A would

          9  specifically provide that if no identifying

         10  information is obscured, then no summons may be

         11  issued.

         12                 Additionally where enforcement

         13  personnel is confronted with a situation where they

         14  cannot readily tell by inspecting a license plate

         15  whether information obscured is identifying

         16  information or some other type of information, that

         17  such personnel would be required to check all

         18  official government issued, readily visible

         19  information posted on or affixed to or presented on

         20  the vehicle to ascertain whether the information

         21  obscured is or is not identifying information.

         22                 Finally, this bill would provide an

         23  affirmative defense to the issuance of a summons for

         24  obscuring license plate information. An individual

         25  who can produce official government-issued
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          2  documentation demonstrating that the obscured

          3  information is not identifying information, would

          4  have the summons dismissed.

          5                 The third and final item on the

          6  agenda is Resolution Number 357.

          7                 This Resolution calls on the New York

          8  State Legislature to amend the vehicle and traffic

          9  law in order to allow individuals to use metal or

         10  plastic frames around license plates, as long as the

         11  vital information on the plates is not obscured in

         12  any way.

         13                 This prohibition does not make a

         14  distinction between the vehicles that are parked or

         15  vehicles are in motion.

         16                 Proposed Intro. No. 384-A would

         17  specifically address the prohibition as it applies

         18  to parked vehicles within the City of New York.

         19                 State Law would need to be changed to

         20  alter the prohibitions application to vehicles that

         21  are actually in motion.

         22                 Currently Section 402 of the Vehicle

         23  and Traffic Law unconditionally prohibits the use of

         24  metal or plastic coverings on license plates.

         25                 This includes even those instances
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          2  where the information on the license plate remains

          3  readable and does not preclude law enforcement

          4  officers from carrying out their responsibilities.

          5                 Because the law makes no distinction,

          6  an individual may receive a summons of $65 for

          7  merely having a metal or plastic frame around the

          8  vehicle's license plate, despite the fact that the

          9  information on the license plate is unobstructive.

         10                 This raises questions of fairness and

         11  underscores the need to ensure that the goal of

         12  state law is achieved by more specifically targeting

         13  the problem it is trying to address and the

         14  individuals that they are trying to penalize and

         15  deter.

         16                 This resolution contends that State

         17  law should permit an automobile license plate to be

         18  placed within a metal or plastic frame, as long as

         19  the frame does not obscure the numbers or the

         20  letters of the license plate, or render the

         21  information unreadable and any one of the two state

         22  logos remain in full view.

         23                 Representatives of the Administration

         24  are present to testify on today's items.

         25                 We have the Department of
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          2  Transportation, Deputy Commissioner David Woloch,

          3  who will testify regarding proposed Intro. No. 205-A

          4  as it relates to the electrical infrastructure,

          5  while the Director of the NYPD Parking Enforcement

          6  District, John Valles, will testify with relation to

          7  proposed Intro. No. 384-A, as it relates to the

          8  license plate coverings.

          9                 Director Valles will also be joined

         10  by Susan Petito, from the NYPD.

         11                 We are joined this morning by Council

         12  Member Joe Addabbo from Queens, Vincent Gentile from

         13  Brooklyn, and I want to thank the work of this

         14  Committee, and the staff of this Committee, for

         15  everything that they have done to prepare for

         16  today's hearing. Mitchell Schwartz, our Legislative

         17  Counsel, and Roberta Ragone, from the Infrastructure

         18  Division, and also my Chief of Staff Philip Homm

         19  (phonetic).

         20                 At this point we are pleased to

         21  welcome Deputy Commissioner Woloch.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Thank

         23  you.

         24                 Good morning, Chairman Liu, and

         25  members of the Transportation Committee. I'm David
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          2  Woloch, Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs, at

          3  the New York City Department of Transportation.

          4                 And with me here today is Steven

          5  Galbano, DOT's Executive Director of Traffic

          6  Operations Engineering.

          7                 Thank you for providing me with this

          8  opportunity to testify today on proposed Intro.

          9  205-A. I commend Chairman Liu and this Committee for

         10  your leadership and focusing on the safety of

         11  utility work performed on the City's streets and

         12  sidewalks, and making this issue a priority in the

         13  aftermath of the January 16th tragedy.

         14                 Ensuring the safety of those

         15  traveling on the City's streets and sidewalks is

         16  certainly a top priority for DOT, and we welcome the

         17  opportunity to be here today.

         18                 Proposed Intro. 205-A will require

         19  all entities responsible for the operation and

         20  maintenance of electrical-related infrastructure of

         21  the City to establish and implement written

         22  guidelines and procedures to the annual inspection

         23  of its equipment, and where necessary, to make

         24  appropriate repairs.

         25                 The bill also goes a step further by
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          2  requiring DOT to conduct at least 250 annual random

          3  inspections of electrical-related infrastructure

          4  that is owned or operated by utility companies.

          5                 The bill additionally requires that

          6  non-conductive protective materials be used to

          7  insulate all electrical-related infrastructure.

          8                 As I stated at the last hearing on

          9  this legislation, the Administration supports the

         10  intent of this bill and annual inspections as a

         11  means of ensuring the safety of the public as they

         12  navigate the City streets and sidewalks.

         13                 Any person walking around the City

         14  should be assured of the integrity of the electrical

         15  equipment located on and below the streets and

         16  sidewalks.

         17                 As I've also stated previously, the

         18  City is in fact taking steps to ensure inspections

         19  of the infrastructure under our jurisdiction.

         20                 Within the City there are

         21  approximately 300,000 street lights. In addition to

         22  the 170,000 metal street light poles located on our

         23  streets, there are approximately 20,000 metal light

         24  polls located on Parks Department property and

         25  approximately 50,000 traffic signal polls, all
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          2  categories of which DOT is responsible to maintain.

          3                 DOT already conducts annual

          4  inspections of traffic signals and we are

          5  incorporating inspections for stray voltage as part

          6  of these inspections.

          7                 Inspections of street lights for

          8  stray voltage are more difficult because our polls,

          9  while usually assessed every ten days, are done so

         10  from vehicles.

         11                 As was done this year, however, we

         12  will ensure inspection for stray voltage going

         13  forward.

         14                 While this will likely create a new

         15  cost to the City, it is one we plan to pursue.

         16                 We are currently examining different

         17  mechanisms to conduct these inspections as

         18  efficiently and as reliably as possible.

         19                 While DOT supports the use of annual

         20  inspections to test the safety of its own

         21  electrical-related infrastructure, we are adamantly

         22  opposed to conducting any inspections of

         23  infrastructure that is not under our ownership and

         24  control.

         25                 It is not within the purview of DOT's
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          2  mission to regulate utilities. We are not funded to

          3  undertake this additional responsibility, nor does

          4  the agency employ the appropriate type of person

          5  with the necessary expertise to undertake in-depth

          6  inspections of utility equipment.

          7                 Generally speaking, the

          8  responsibility for safely using the streets and

          9  sidewalks for providing electricity is bestowed on

         10  Con Edison, pursuant to several regulations and

         11  agreements, most of which date back to over a

         12  century.

         13                 This includes several dozen

         14  franchises, a conduit contract, and a transformer

         15  revokable consent agreement.

         16                 Furthermore, Con Edison operates as a

         17  public service corporation under the Public Service

         18  Law as administered by the Public Service

         19  Commission, or the PSC.

         20                 The PSC is the entity that has

         21  oversight responsibilities over Con Edison, and is

         22  the entity responsible for establishing rules and

         23  procedures to ensure that Con Edison's

         24  infrastructure is safe to the public and well

         25  maintained.
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          2                 It's my understanding that the PSC is

          3  taking the issue of ensuring the integrity of

          4  electrical related infrastructure very seriously,

          5  and will in fact be making recommendations for the

          6  establishment of new guidelines and procedures that

          7  regulated utilities must abide by.

          8                 In addition to requiring annual

          9  inspections, proposed Intro. 210-A would also

         10  require that all entities responsible for the

         11  operation and maintenance of any electrical-related

         12  infrastructure in the City, to utilize

         13  non-conductive protective materials to insulate such

         14  infrastructure.

         15                 As I stated at the last hearing on

         16  this legislation, this bill as currently drafted

         17  does not clarify what would be expected of DOT with

         18  regard to our street lights and traffic signals.

         19                 The electrical wiring inside the

         20  casing of our street lights and traffic signal poles

         21  is already well insulated and accordingly we assume

         22  that we are already in compliance with this

         23  provision of the bill.

         24                 However, we do ask that the Council

         25  clarify the intent of the bill as it relates to the
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          2  City street lights and traffic signals.

          3                 As the agency responsible for the

          4  safety of the City's streets and sidewalks,

          5  protecting the public as they travel around the City

          6  is a primary concern for DOT.

          7                 New York City was recently cited as

          8  the "number one walking City in America," a

          9  testament to our safe streets and sidewalks. And we

         10  want to continue to do all we can to improve and

         11  ensure the safety of our pedestrians.

         12                 Accordingly, we applaud the Council

         13  in their efforts to address the safety of the City's

         14  electrical infrastructure, and we hope to continue

         15  to work with you to develop this legislation

         16  further.

         17                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         18  testify before you today. At this time we will be

         19  happy to answer any questions you have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         21                 We've also been joined by Council

         22  Member Sara Gonzalez from Brooklyn, and Council

         23  Member Margarita Lopez from Manhattan. And at this

         24  point, Council Member Lopez, who is the prime

         25  sponsor of proposed Intro. 205-A, will make an
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          2  opening statement.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chairman, and thank you to the City Council for

          5  listening to this issue that is being like a plague

          6  in my community.

          7                 I appreciate the interest of this

          8  issue by you and by the Speaker of the City Council.

          9                 I only want to indicate the following

         10  thing: My community is afraid of walking on the

         11  streets of the community that I represent. And the

         12  reason why they are afraid is because even after

         13  everything that went down when Jodie Lane died, even

         14  after all the attention of the media was put on this

         15  issue, not two months ago we have more reports of

         16  dogs being electric shocked in my community.

         17                 Not only that happen not even two

         18  months ago, explosions on potholes, on the holes of

         19  Con Edison controlled happen, not so far away from

         20  my own home actually, on the corner of 11th Street

         21  and Avenue B where I live. I witnessed the

         22  explosion.

         23                 My community cannot take this no

         24  more. So far this issue has been affecting my

         25  community in a proportional way than other
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          2  communities. It's not going to be too long when this

          3  issue is going to be spread over this City for one

          4  simple reason, and that's the reason why this

          5  legislation was drafted at my request. And the

          6  simple reason is that the electrical companies are

          7  not being monitored and not being watched and not

          8  being taking care in regard of the mandates that

          9  they have on them and those mandates being enforced.

         10                 Everybody passed the buck. Everybody

         11  said no. The Public Safety Commission is the one who

         12  had to take care of it. Then the Public Safety

         13  Commission have to come here and indicate to us that

         14  all of the 10,000 alleged electric shocks that were

         15  given to animals in New York City were never

         16  reported by Con Edison to them.

         17                 This needs to stop, and DOT have to

         18  be responsible at our level for looking into how our

         19  population is going to be protected and be able to

         20  walk on the street without being electric shocked,

         21  or electrocuted.

         22                 Then this bill is intending to fix

         23  that and to make sure that every child in this City,

         24  every animal in this City, every senior, every

         25  person can come out of their home, walk on the
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          2  street in the winter, in the summer, in the spring

          3  or in autumn, and not be killed by walking in our

          4  City.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I hope

          6  that this bill will be expeditiously passed and

          7  approved by the Council.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          9  Member Lopez. I certainly hope that we will be able

         10  to work closely with the Department of

         11  Transportation.

         12                 We are heading to a point where we

         13  are going to vote on this bill in the near future,

         14  and to the extent that we can iron out any

         15  differences without taking away from the force of

         16  the bill, that certainly will be helpful. As we have

         17  talked about at the previous two meetings, the issue

         18  of Con Ed being responsible for inspecting its own

         19  work, there continues, based on your testimony, to

         20  be a difference of opinion between us on this

         21  Committee and the Department of Transportation.

         22                 We certainly commend you for

         23  reporting the requirements for DOT to inspect its

         24  own, the fixtures that are under control of the DOT.

         25                 With respect to Con Ed's
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          2  infrastructure, Con Ed is responsible and should be

          3  responsible for inspecting its own work on the

          4  infrastructure that it's responsible for, and that

          5  in many cases it owns. Your testimony is that the

          6  DOT doesn't want to be responsible for inspecting

          7  any of the Con Ed's infrastructure; is that true?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: That's

          9  correct, although I would phrase it a little

         10  differently. It's more than us not wanting to; we

         11  don't feel that we are equipped to do that. We don't

         12  feel that we have the expertise. This is not what

         13  our agency is charged with doing, and we don't feel

         14  we would have the ability to do that adequately.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But your testimony

         16  says that the Public Service Commission should be

         17  doing that?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: The

         19  Public Service Commission is an oversight entity for

         20  all the utilities in the State. They have oversight

         21  responsibility over Con Edison, and it's our

         22  understanding they're taking this set of issues very

         23  seriously, and that they will be doing whatever they

         24  can to require Con Edison to assume some of the

         25  responsibilities that are reflected in the
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          2  legislation.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And, yet, the

          4  Department of Transportation is the entity that

          5  issues the work permits to Con Ed?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: We issue

          7  the work permits to Con Ed and anybody else who does

          8  work that affects what happens above ground, whether

          9  it's Con Ed, whether it's a contractor doing work

         10  for the City.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And you're issued

         12  the permits as it relates to how it affects traffic

         13  and safety from vehicles that are moving on City

         14  streets?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Well, no.

         16  When we issue permits, and we issue permits with

         17  stipulations for every contractor that does work, we

         18  do that with the safety of motorists and

         19  pedestrians.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure, safety of

         21  motorists as well as pedestrians. But that's kind of

         22  what you look at, right? When you issue a permit

         23  you're looking at pedestrian safety, as well as the

         24  safety of motorists and passengers in the cars. But

         25  you're not actually looking at the kind of work that

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  they're doing as it relates to potential stray

          3  voltage, potential electrocutions.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Exactly.

          5                 I mean, there's a lots of work that

          6  happens below ground, whether it's done by Con Ed,

          7  whether it's done by the utilities, whether it's

          8  done by cable companies. We, in no way, whatsoever,

          9  do we weigh in on what happens below ground. You

         10  know, again, we're not charged with that, but I

         11  think it's reasonable to think about are there new

         12  arenas that departments need to get into, but we

         13  certainly don't have that expertise. That's not what

         14  we know about, it's not what we understand. So, any

         15  work that gets done below ground --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Whether

         18  it's sewers, whether it's cabling, whether it's

         19  wiring, whether it's transformers, we don't

         20  understand that equipment, and I don't think it

         21  would be in the interest of anyone to have us

         22  weighing in on that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I appreciate the

         24  difficult situation that the Department of

         25  Transportation finds itself in with regard to this
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          2  matter.

          3                 Our dilemma for the people of the

          4  City of New York, is that supposedly the Public

          5  Service Commission is responsible for monitoring and

          6  when we do require these inspections, perhaps they

          7  are the most logical entity to conduct these

          8  inspections.

          9                 There's got to be a governmental

         10  agency that is responsible for conducting

         11  inspections on work done on public property by a

         12  private contractor.

         13                 I don't think that there's going to

         14  be a lot of disagreement -- well, at least in this

         15  Committee we're convinced that any work that's done

         16  by a private company, such as Con Edison, on a

         17  public street or sidewalk, should be overseen

         18  carefully by a public agency. Whether it's the

         19  Public Service Commission or another City agency,

         20  that is apparently a big question right now.

         21                 The Public Service Commission is

         22  probably not well-equipped to conduct these

         23  inspections, but at some point someone in the City

         24  has to be responsible for conducting these

         25  inspections.  Right now your agency probably has
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          2  first dibbs, whether you like it or not.

          3                 So, if the means that the

          4  Administration needs to provide more resources, or

          5  providing the training involved or accumulate the

          6  expertise, I think it's something that we need to do

          7  in the City of New York.

          8                 Are there any questions?

          9                 Yes, we do have a number of

         10  questions. We've also been joined by Council Member

         11  Diana Reyna from Brooklyn, and Council Member Miguel

         12  Martinez from Manhattan.

         13                 Let me turn the floor over to Council

         14  Member Addabbo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chair.

         17                 Mr. Woloch, thank you very much for

         18  your time and testimony today, for being here as

         19  well. With reference to the implementation of Intro.

         20  205-A and to comply with its requirements and also

         21  with regards to DOT's own electrical-related

         22  infrastructure, okay? To comply with 205-A, would

         23  you have to hire additional inspectors?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         25  Absolutely. Well, we would have to spend funds in
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          2  one way, shape or form. It would either be the

          3  hiring of more inspectors, or relying on

          4  contractors, or some mix. But, yes, we don't have

          5  those resources in place now. And I might have

          6  talked about this at the last hearing, but this year

          7  we were able to get those inspections done, and

          8  essentially we used resources that, you know, would

          9  have otherwise been doing other work.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: With regards

         11  to equipment, again, would you have to, again,

         12  purchase different updated or additional equipment?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Yes. The

         14  expectation is, assuming that we use City personnel,

         15  that we'd need vehicles, we'd need, in all

         16  likelihood, computers, you know, there would be

         17  voltage readers. I don't think the equipment would

         18  be extensive, and I think the bulk of the cost is

         19  paying for the people to do the work.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: And just

         21  lastly, currently does DOT issue any type of written

         22  report regarding their current or ongoing

         23  inspections of your properties, regards to its

         24  findings, regards to its conditions of existing City

         25  electrical infrastructure; do you currently issue
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          2  any type of written report for the inspections that

          3  you currently do?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: As

          5  relates to stray voltage?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: As it relates

          7  to stray voltage, as it relates to any of your type

          8  of inspections with regards to the electrical

          9  infrastructure; do you issue any type of written

         10  report?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I don't

         12  think formally. I know we've, you know, we've

         13  reported on the result of this year's inspections,

         14  for example, but I don't think in a formal manner.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Nothing

         16  written. Nothing that the Council could review or

         17  any other an elected official can review?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: We have

         19  computer programs which deal back and forth with the

         20  contractors, but we make the street lights, 270,000

         21  repaired that we keep in the computer, that's a heck

         22  of a report, if you're interested. So, we don't do

         23  formally, have a written report, but we give

         24  summaries of how many inspections we make, how many

         25  repairs we find, how long it takes to do them,
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          2  things like that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: So, there is

          4  a summary that can be done of this extensive report;

          5  but can that summary be done in a written form and

          6  be given either to this Committee or to the Council

          7  body?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: We can

          9  certainly compile that information.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: I think that

         11  would be helpful in the future. I do.

         12                 Gentlemen, thank you very much for

         13  your time.

         14                 Mr. Chair, thank you for letting me

         15  speak. And if I could be added to 205-A as a

         16  sponsor, please.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It shall be done.

         18                 Council Member Lopez.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The inspection

         20  that you said that you completed are connected to

         21  what specifically, to the surface, to the street

         22  lights, to what?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: The

         24  inspections that I was just referencing are

         25  inspections we did, that we did this year in the
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          2  spring, as relates to stray voltage on the surface

          3  from our traffic signal poles and our street light

          4  poles.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then these are

          6  the ones that are pertinent to you in regard of the

          7  services that the Department of Transportation have

          8  included under their purview, correct?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Because you

         11  have no information, no confirmation, no

         12  documentation about inspections that had to do with

         13  the underground electrical systems, correct?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: That's

         15  correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you in the

         17  past have any of those information given to you?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I don't

         19  believe so.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the

         21  Department have no clue when, how, electrical work

         22  is done on the ground, how this is resolved, how

         23  it's concluded, how it's finished? The only thing

         24  you know is that you issue a permit for work that is

         25  going to be underground, once the work underground
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          2  is finished, you know no more after that?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Right.

          4                 We can tell you, for instance, when

          5  work was done, how long it took, when it was done,

          6  but in terms of the actual work that's getting done

          7  below ground, that's correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And you don't

          9  have any information, any confirmation, any

         10  reassurance that the work that was done under that

         11  permit was completed, finalized, and the public

         12  safety was taken care?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: In terms

         14  of integrity of let's say electrical work, no.

         15                 And similarly we did permits for

         16  building construction, and when building

         17  construction happens, you know, we make sure, we

         18  give permits with stipulations, in terms of the

         19  impact on the street, but how that building

         20  construction works is getting done the quality of

         21  that building construction isn't something that we

         22  weigh in on. I think it's somewhat analogous.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then if we talk

         24  about Jodie Lane, when she was walking on the

         25  street, you have no clue whatsoever, and the
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          2  Department will have no clue, no mandate, no

          3  obligation, to protect the safety of Jodie Lane

          4  under the circumstances in which this electrical

          5  incident occurred? Because it was not in your

          6  purview, it was not your responsibility, Con Edison

          7  doesn't have to give you no information on that,

          8  because under the way that this is structured, you

          9  don't have that mandate under your responsibility?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: That's

         11  correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the City

         13  of New York have a citizen who died on the street of

         14  New York by a company who required a permit that you

         15  gave them. But at the end of the day when they

         16  finish the work that they did there, they cannot

         17  even secure and make clear to us in our liability as

         18  a City, it's not taken care by this company who

         19  utilize our infrastructure, but doesn't secure the

         20  safety of our people. And you, who are responsible

         21  to make sure that the infrastructure is safe for all

         22  of us, don't even get the information to secure the

         23  public that they are safe, correct?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: That's

         25  essentially correct. I mean, we have responsibility,
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          2  you know, as we've all said, for streets and

          3  sidewalks, what happens above ground. There's a lot

          4  of factors that can weigh in on all of our safety,

          5  as we're walking around.

          6                 Again, using a building as an example

          7  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Are we talking

          9  about electrical system in the streets of New York,

         10  we are not talking about a building? We're talking

         11  about DOT responsibility in regard of the surface,

         12  in regard of the safety of the people walking on the

         13  street, that's what we're talking about.

         14                 And my question was raised

         15  specifically in regard to that. I was correct in my

         16  assumption?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         18  Essentially yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then I would

         20  say that somehow somewhere the Department have to

         21  understand that we cannot continue in this City

         22  walking like we are taking care in the terms of our

         23  safety by the Department of DOT, unless we put

         24  specific regulations in here that will take care of

         25  this particular problem that is not created by us,
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          2  meaning DOT or the City of New York, but created by

          3  companies who benefit by the taxpayers' dollars of

          4  the City, and then in the same breath that they do

          5  that, they haunt (sic) us by not being responsible

          6  in taking care of the safety of our City. And if

          7  they don't, then we have the responsibility to do

          8  it, and DOT have that responsibility, as far as I

          9  know, under the mandate of this Charter that said

         10  that you are responsible for the safety of all of us

         11  on the infrastructure on the surface.

         12                 Do we agree on that?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think

         14  we agree in the sense that we are saying that the

         15  safety of everybody on our streets and sidewalks is

         16  important, but I think we disagree in the sense that

         17  we do not believe that it's our purview to weigh in

         18  on the integrity of electrical work below the

         19  street.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But that's not

         21  what this bill is about.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Well, --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: This bill is

         24  not about the integrity of the work underground.

         25  This bill is about we, government, making sure that
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          2  any entity that try to come here and do business in

          3  this City do not jeopardize the people who pay the

          4  taxes, who maintain the City, and do not jeopardize

          5  their life.

          6                 Government is here to guarantee that.

          7  Whatever they do underground, whatever they don't do

          8  underground, that is their business. Whatever happen

          9  over the ground, where we have to guarantee the

         10  safety of the people then is our business. And

         11  that's what this bill is about.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think

         13  we agree with the ends of this bill.

         14                 I think the City feels strongly that

         15  this issue that has been taken up is an important

         16  one, and that the integrity of all the electrical

         17  infrastructure needs to be guaranteed. I think it's

         18  the means that we have a difference of opinion on.

         19  That we know that over the past few months -- I

         20  mean, there's no question that in the past this

         21  integrity was not being looked at in the way that it

         22  should have. I think we understand that Con Ed is

         23  now rethinking how they do business. You know, the

         24  Public Service Commission is in the process

         25  rethinking what they're going to require of Con Ed.
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          2  So, I think that mechanism is there. The Public

          3  Service Commission happens to be a state agency;

          4  does that make it, you know, any less qualified to

          5  add this value here that I think we all think is

          6  necessary? I don't think so.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, the only

          8  thing I can tell you about that is that I am

          9  accustomed now to know that Albany doesn't give a

         10  damn about us down here and the proof is in the

         11  pudding.

         12                 If the Public Safety Commission will

         13  care for us, this would have never happened. If the

         14  Albany area would care for us, we would not have to

         15  go to a lawsuit to fund our school.

         16                 And it's clear to me that we have to

         17  take care of ourselves, and I have absolute faith on

         18  Mayor Bloomberg and the Department of Transportation

         19  to take care of my safety.

         20                 I have no faith on the Public Safety

         21  Commission.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         23  Member Lopez.

         24                 We have also been joined by Council

         25  Member James Sanders, from Queens. Let me just wrap
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          2  up very quickly by saying that we do have a problem.

          3  The problem once again is that we have a private

          4  contractors, or private contractors on public

          5  streets and public sidewalks, and the private

          6  contractors are doing work, but the work that they

          7  do, especially when there is a potential for danger

          8  to the public, the work that they do needs to be

          9  overseen or inspected by a public agency. The Public

         10  Service Commission at the State level is in no shape

         11  to conduct these inspections. Based on their own

         12  testimony before this Committee, they have

         13  demonstrated that the main charge that they carry

         14  out at the State level in Albany is rate making for

         15  Con Edison. They set the rates or they work with Con

         16  Edison to set the rates that New York State

         17  residents have to pay for their electricity and for

         18  other utilities functions. But they don't get

         19  involved in inspections.

         20                 Even as you talk about them

         21  promulgating the requirements, they can put

         22  together, impose all the requirements that they'd

         23  like, but they are not, we don't have confidence

         24  that the Public Service Commission actually conduct

         25  the inspections to make sure that the requirements
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          2  are, in fact, being fulfilled.

          3                 Now, your Department is left in a

          4  quandary, because your Department has not in the

          5  past been charged with this awesome responsibility,

          6  and it is a significant responsibility, but through

          7  this bill, which is a bill that we feel strongly

          8  about, we're asking the Administration, the City of

          9  New York, to assume some of the responsibility

         10  overseeing what these private contractors do on our

         11  City streets and sidewalks and even below our

         12  streets and sidewalks, because what happens below

         13  has the potential for causing danger to pedestrians

         14  on City streets and sidewalks, dangers in terms of

         15  electrical shocks, electrocutions, stray voltage,

         16  which is what I call the euphemism to describe this

         17  very real danger. We continue to have manholes

         18  blowing on City streets that causes a tremendous

         19  danger to pedestrians, to motorists, and to property

         20  as well.

         21                 So, we need the City to assume

         22  responsibility. Your agency, whether you like it or

         23  not, is in the best position to assume this

         24  responsibility on behalf of the people of this City.

         25  So, we ask you to carefully consider the bill that
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          2  we're putting before this Committee and asking you

          3  to take a look at it. And we hope that we'll be able

          4  to come to terms on this. We do intend to vote on

          5  proposed Intro. No. 205-A in the near future.

          6                 We have one more follow-up question

          7  from Council Member Sanders.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chair. Thank you for this very important

         10  discussion on this issue, and thank you, Council

         11  Member Lopez, for bringing this to the light.

         12                 Gentlemen, thank you for being here.

         13  I'm just curious to know why don't we -- it seems

         14  that if you did do this inspection, why don't you

         15  pass the costs along to Con Ed, if you're saying

         16  that it will create additional costs?

         17                 Surely you would pass it to them if

         18  you considered it.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think

         20  we would certainly try to, although I think it's

         21  fair to say in the end we all end up paying for it

         22  one way or the other, but we would certainly try to,

         23  to the extent we could, we could by law.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you,

         25  sir.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          4  Member Sanders.

          5                 Thank you, Deputy Commissioner, and

          6  Mr. Galgano, for joining us this morning.

          7                 We have several people wishing to

          8  testify on proposed Intro. 205-A as it relates to

          9  the electrical infrastructure, and we're going to

         10  hear from them shortly, but I'd like to ask for the

         11  representatives of the NYPD to come testify on the

         12  other bill that we're considering today, which is

         13  proposed Intro. 384-A, as it relates to the use of

         14  license plate frames in our City.

         15                 Immediately after these

         16  representatives of the NYPD testify, we'll go back

         17  to a discussion on Intro. 205-A, and we'll hear from

         18  Gregory Brender from Assemblymember Deborah Glick's

         19  Office; Mark Williams from the Utility Workers

         20  Union, Local 1-2; Susan Stetzer from Community Board

         21  3; Gunnar Hellekson from the Jodi Lane Project; and

         22  Howard Brandstein from the Sixth Street Community

         23  Center.

         24                 If there is anybody else who wishes

         25  to testify, please fill out one of these slips, and
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          2  we will put you on the speaking list.

          3                 Good morning, and thank you for

          4  joining us, Director Valles and Ms. Petito.

          5                 MR. VALLES: Good morning, Mr.

          6  Chairman, and members of the Council. I'm John

          7  Valles, Director of the New York City Police

          8  Department Parking Enforcement District, and on

          9  behalf of the Police Commissioner Raymond Kelly and

         10  Chief of Transportation Michael Scagnelli, I am

         11  pleased to be here today to discuss Intro. No. 384,

         12  regarding license plate frames.

         13                 Intro. 384 would add a new section to

         14  the Administrative Code allowing a license plate on

         15  a motor vehicle to be placed within a metal or

         16  plastic frame, while the vehicle is parked, so long

         17  as such frame does not obscure identifying

         18  information on the plate.

         19                 We find the bill confusing in several

         20  ways. First, the bill apparently seeks to create an

         21  exception to the Vehicle Traffic Law Section 402,

         22  which governs the placement of vehicle license

         23  plates.

         24                 Local governments do not have the

         25  power to supersede state law, unless that authority
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          2  is specifically granted to them by the state law.

          3  That is not the case in this instance.

          4                 The bill seems to exclude parked

          5  vehicles from the general population of vehicles for

          6  purposes of analyzing whether number plates may be

          7  encased in frames. Vehicle Traffic Law, Section 402,

          8  applies to all vehicles operated, driven or parked

          9  on the public streets, and therefore a local law may

         10  not treat parked vehicles differently for this

         11  person.

         12                 We are also concerned that the owner

         13  of a parked vehicle will be very unlikely to remove

         14  a license plate frame each time he or she actually

         15  began to drive the vehicle, so the exception

         16  provided by the bill could possibly encourage

         17  illegal behavior while operating the vehicle on

         18  public roadways.

         19                 The bill seems to be intended to

         20  prohibit enforcement of the Vehicle Traffic Law

         21  Section 402 for parked vehicles "so long as such

         22  frame does not obscure the numbers, letters or other

         23  identifying information on such license plate and

         24  does not in any way hinder the identification of the

         25  vehicle.
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          2                 However, the Vehicle Traffic Law

          3  Section 402 would likely not be violated in such a

          4  case.

          5                 Vehicle Traffic Law Section 402

          6  requires plates to be clean, in a condition so as to

          7  be easily readable, not covered by glass or any

          8  plastic material, and with an unobstructed view of

          9  the plate by any part of the vehicle or by anything

         10  carried on it, except an authorized E-Z pass

         11  transmitter.

         12                 It is submitted that if a license

         13  plate complies with the conditions in the bill

         14  regarding the legibility of the plate information,

         15  it would not be in violation of the Vehicle Traffic

         16  Law prohibition, and therefore there would be no

         17  local exception required.

         18                 Further, if a license plate frame

         19  covers the top and bottom edges of a license plate,

         20  partially or fully covering the words commonly

         21  contained there, such as "New York," "Empire State,"

         22  "Commercial," "Livery," "Taxi," or "School," then

         23  the frame will violate the Vehicle Traffic Law and

         24  would not receive the proposed exception in the

         25  bill, because identifying information is obscured.
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          2  Therefore, the ultimate purpose of the bill is

          3  unclear.

          4                 As a general matter, there are sold

          5  public safety reasons why a license plate must be

          6  fully legible. All identifying information, even the

          7  most basic, the state name, is relevant and

          8  necessary for the description of a vehicle.

          9                 Keeping a license plate fully legible

         10  serves as a significant law enforcement purpose

         11  since it allows a police officer to identify an

         12  automobile for which there is a crime associated, or

         13  in which there is a stolen vehicle alarm, or even

         14  alleged to be carrying an abducted person.

         15                 The relevant description of a vehicle

         16  plate may be either the plate or a certain state, or

         17  a partial or complete plate number, or any

         18  combination. Since vehicles can move at a rapid rate

         19  under different lighting conditions, it is critical

         20  that license plates not be obscured in the split

         21  second that is often afforded police officers to

         22  read them.

         23                 In addition, the covering of language

         24  indicating the plate type, such as "Commercial,"

         25  makes it more difficult to enforce laws and
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          2  regulations applicable to that type of vehicle, for

          3  example, commercial vehicles parked on residential

          4  streets during hours when they are prohibited.

          5                 We note that the bill was amended

          6  yesterday purporting to prohibit issuance of a

          7  summons where information obscured on a license

          8  plate is not "identifying information."

          9                 The bill goes on to limit

         10  "identifying information" to a vehicle's license

         11  plate number, state of issuance, and vehicle class.

         12                 With all due respect, it is not

         13  within the purview of the City Council to determine

         14  whether any or all information contained on a

         15  state-issued number plate is capable of being

         16  legally obscured.

         17                 State law clearly governs this

         18  matter, and notwithstanding the bill's attempt to

         19  characterize some information as less valuable than

         20  other information, law enforcement personnel must

         21  under all circumstances have full view of all

         22  information contained on a license plate, as

         23  mandated by state law.

         24                 In conclusion, we respectfully

         25  recommend that the bill not be approved, and we'll
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          2  be pleased to answer any questions you may have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          4  Director Valles.

          5                 We have a statement and questions

          6  from Council Member Vincent Gentile, who is the

          7  prime sponsor of proposed Intro. No. 384-A, as well

          8  as the accompanying Resolution No. 357.

          9                 Council Member Gentile.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman.

         12                 Good morning, Mr. Valles, Director

         13  Valles. Thank you for being here.

         14                 Mr. Chairman, you so well summarized

         15  the resolution and the Intro. I won't go over too

         16  much of it, but I do want to make clarifications

         17  here, as to what we are doing.

         18                 We have both an Intro. for the local

         19  law and a resolution asking the State Legislature to

         20  change the State law. So, it's two separate motions

         21  here, we have an Intro and a bill. I think that was

         22  a little bit confused in your presentation.

         23                 So, I just wanted to clarify that.

         24                 And the law that we're seeking to

         25  amend here, both on the local level and passing the
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          2  resolution, attempting to pass the resolution asking

          3  the State to change the law is not a new law. And I

          4  want to say from the outset, the intent of the law

          5  is good. It is a good, as you have indicated, the

          6  intent is to be sure that Law Enforcement officials

          7  have the ability to identify license plates in the

          8  event that that is needed.

          9                 So, certainly the intent of the law

         10  is good. And I don't think anyone here on this

         11  Council would argue or object to the intent of the

         12  law.

         13                 We address it now in asking for this

         14  amendment and the resolution to the State to change

         15  their law, because residents to starting to get

         16  summonsed and ticketed under this local law, those

         17  automobiles that are parked on the streets of the

         18  City of New York. And I think what we're seeing here

         19  reflects an unreasonable interpretation of this

         20  local law, is I think the fourth branch of

         21  government represented by traffic enforcement agents

         22  running amuck. They have taken the intent of the law

         23  to the ridiculous.

         24                 And, yes, the traffic agents in

         25  writing these summonses may be following the
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          2  language of the law, that is the black and white

          3  language of the law, but they are clearly, clearly,

          4  their enforcement violates the spirit and the intent

          5  of this law, and the intent of this law was to

          6  provide law enforcement with the ability to identify

          7  plates.

          8                 Where we get into some questioning

          9  I'll get into more detail about this, but clearly

         10  the enforcement that is happening now, this law has

         11  been on the books, but enforcement now, people are

         12  getting ticketed now, and it's beginning to build,

         13  and I believe the enforcement of this provision,

         14  based on the strict enforcement, violates the intent

         15  and the spirit of this law, and making our

         16  amendments and the resolution necessary.

         17                 So, I believe, Mr. Chairman, that

         18  what we're seeing here is just another episode in

         19  the continuing saga of harassing New Yorkers with a

         20  new form of a ticket blitz, and that's what we seek

         21  to put an end to here with the legislation and with

         22  the resolution.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         24  Member Gentile.

         25                 I just have a quick question.
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          2                 If a license plate frame covers the

          3  word "Empire State," does that have any bearing on

          4  the ability of police officers or traffic agents to

          5  do their job?

          6                 MR. VALLES: Yes, it does.

          7                 One is identifying if it's a

          8  legitimate license plate, so, that's why we have

          9  those identifying letters and words on the license

         10  plate.

         11                 MS. PETITO: Mr. Chairman, can I add

         12  something to that, as well?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, please.

         14                 MS. PETITO: I think that part of the

         15  issue that we want to bring out is the fact that any

         16  information contained on a license plate is

         17  potentially valuable to a police officer, especially

         18  if he's looking for a vehicle, or has a partial

         19  description of the vehicle, and the vehicle is

         20  moving at high speed.

         21                 If he sees the words "Empire State,"

         22  but cannot see the words "New York," for example,

         23  that is a piece of information which helps him

         24  identify the vehicle, and we are concerned greatly

         25  with balancing public safety against all we can see
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          2  as a cosmetic or an advertising interest, in terms

          3  of having license plate frames on license plates

          4  that obscure any of the information on the license

          5  plate.

          6                 It's our intention to make sure that

          7  all the possible information available to a police

          8  officer is available 24 hours wherever that vehicle

          9  is, because we cannot imagine that people who have

         10  the license plate frame on their cars while parked

         11  will take them off every time the car is in motion.

         12                 To us that is not a realistic

         13  expectation. And, so, what we're faced with is the

         14  police officers on highways unable to see the entire

         15  plate of the car because it has a frame on it, and

         16  that is what fuels our opposition to the bill.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         18                 We have a question from Council

         19  Member Lopez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Just a question

         21  for you. I own a Rodeo Isuzu, the plate in the back,

         22  the location for it, is put in such a way that go

         23  down under the bumper.

         24                 Every time that I pass my car, other

         25  cars come behind and push the plate in. Every time I
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          2  go to my car, I have to go and push the plate back.

          3                 In those cases in which the design of

          4  the cars require a frame in order to sustain the

          5  plate to be straight, although the word "straight,"

          6  I don't like it, let me clarify that,

          7  straightforward is better, then in those cases do

          8  you have a problem with that?

          9                 MS. PETITO: Well, there are frames

         10  that simply are rims around the plate that do not

         11  cover any of the information on the plate, including

         12  the words "Empire State."

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the issue

         14  --

         15                 MS. PETITO: They are very thin.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the issue

         17  is not the frames, the issue is what kind of frame?

         18                 MS. PETITO: Well, I believe that the

         19  VTL requires the plate not be obscured at all.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then if it's

         21  not obscured at all, and if it's a frame that

         22  protect the plate, fulfill the function of those

         23  plates not to be banned or destroyed, and doesn't

         24  cover the information that is required by police

         25  officers to fulfill their duty, you will have no
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          2  problem with a frame being in place.

          3                 MS. PETITO: I believe that that would

          4  be correct.

          5                 Is that correct?

          6                 MR. VALLES: That's correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          9  Member Lopez.

         10                 One final follow-up question from

         11  Council Member Gentile.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Director

         13  Valles, I'm going to show you a picture of someone

         14  who was ticketed for this very -- that's the plate,

         15  ticketed for obstructing the plate, because of a

         16  frame around the plate.

         17                 Now, you said that would not be a

         18  violation of either the VTL or the Administrative

         19  Code. This person, and several others that have come

         20  to my attention, have been ticketed for this very

         21  situation where part of the Empire State is covered

         22  by the frame.

         23                 Now, can you sit here and tell us

         24  that this plate is obstructed? That there's an

         25  inability to identify this plate? And that this
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          2  person ends up with a $65 ticket?

          3                 MR. VALLES: High speed on the

          4  highways, if you see this license plate, the police

          5  officer won't be able to identify, because of the

          6  obstruction of the license plate.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Let me

          8  clarify. Vehicles, as the Chairman said, vehicles in

          9  motion are governed by the VTL, the State law, we're

         10  talking about this automobile was parked on the

         11  streets of the City of New York, and it relates

         12  directly to the Administrative Code that we're

         13  talking about here today.

         14                 So, we have the resolution in asking

         15  the State to act on this, we're acting on the

         16  vehicles that are not in motion, vehicles that are

         17  parked on the streets of New York. We have a traffic

         18  enforcement agent going up and down the streets

         19  looking at parked cars and issued a summons to this

         20  car for an obstructed license plate. Now, tell me if

         21  that's an obstructive license plate.

         22                 MS. PETITO: Let me answer the

         23  question, but I'd like to clarify something first.

         24                 The VTL requires vehicles both in

         25  motion and parked not to have their license plate
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          2  obscured in any way. It doesn't just apply to

          3  vehicles in motion. The VTL explicitly says no

          4  vehicle may be operated or parked in such a manner

          5  that it doesn't have the license plates fully

          6  visible.

          7                 And as I said before, we are very

          8  concerned that a police officer at 70 miles an hour

          9  chasing a car might not be able to see anything but

         10  the bottom of the plate, and if he or she cannot

         11  read the Empire State, that does impact negatively

         12  on the ability to protect public safety.

         13                 If there's a vehicle in motion, you

         14  can't predict what part of the plate the police

         15  officer will be able to catch sight of. And, so, the

         16  point is that that person who had that plate on

         17  their car parked that way, we do not believe that

         18  they will remove that vehicle license plate holder

         19  to go out on the road.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So, you're

         21  saying the slogan, the slogan, the "Empire State,"

         22  is critical, is critical to the identification of

         23  that plate?

         24                 MS. PETITO: I'm saying in particular

         25  circumstances, it may be helpful and necessary, and
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          2  that's the idea behind the State law, to make sure

          3  that every available piece of information on a

          4  license plate is available at all times, so that a

          5  police officer has the maximum amount of knowledge.

          6  If he's looking for a car that has an abducted child

          7  in it, or is fleeing from the scene of a felony, a

          8  violent felony, we want to make sure that police

          9  officers have every chance to identify that car

         10  properly.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Well, then I

         12  think with all due respect, I think your

         13  interpretation of the State law is different than

         14  the State and the Department of Motor Vehicle's, at

         15  the very least.

         16                 But if that were such a critical,

         17  integral part of the license plate, then you would

         18  expect, you would expect that all license plates

         19  issued by the Department of Motor Vehicle would have

         20  that identifying feature.

         21                 If you look at the Department of

         22  Motor Vehicle's website, and you go to their website

         23  and you look at the vanity plates that they are

         24  offering for sale, extra charge, in the State of New

         25  York, and you look at their vanity plates, every
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          2  single one of the vanity plates that they offer do

          3  not, do not have the words "Empire State" on it.

          4                 So, if we're talking about Empire

          5  State being such a critical part of identifying

          6  information, the State Department of Motor Vehicles

          7  issues license plates, vanity plates, that do not

          8  have the words "Empire State." And I dare say that

          9  there are other types of plates that the DMV issues

         10  that do not have the words "Empire State."

         11                 So, it seems to me somewhat

         12  disingenuous to say that you need the Empire State

         13  because you're going 70 miles an hour, and that

         14  might be the only part you could see.

         15                 The Empire State, and this is

         16  evidence of it, to me is a slogan, is a slogan that

         17  we use on the State, just like the "Garden State,"

         18  New Jersey uses the "Garden State," we have the

         19  "Empire State," every state has a slogan, that's

         20  our slogan, so a slogan should not be a summonsable

         21  offense. And the fact that that is not an integral

         22  part of every license plate in the State of New York

         23  underscores that fact.

         24                 I dare said, if that said "Drink

         25  Snapple," instead of the Empire State, would that be
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          2  a summonsable offense?

          3                 A different slogan. Pick a different

          4  slogan, "Drink Snapple," would that be a summonsable

          5  offense?

          6                 MS. PETITO: If a police officer knew

          7  that Drink Snapple was only on a New York plate,

          8  that would assist in identification of the vehicle.

          9  Our aim is to keep the plate clear so that we have

         10  every available piece of information accessible to

         11  the police officer at all times. And sometimes they

         12  don't have a lot of choice about what they can see

         13  on a vehicle plate. We don't think that, you know,

         14  ABC Honda should be given precedence over the

         15  "Empire State," or "Commercial," or "Livery," or

         16  "School," or any of the other indicators that can

         17  be on a license plate.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Well, I dare

         19  say we agree that as far as, as vehicles in motion

         20  that is State VTL. I think there is some basis of

         21  disagreement as to whether this Council has the

         22  ability to regulate cars that are not in motion in

         23  the City of New York, and I believe Council, we have

         24  taken that position, that we do have that ability

         25  within the City of New York for the cars that are
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          2  not in motion.

          3                 So, we're talking somewhat on two

          4  different levels here, because what's happening is

          5  that cars in motion are not getting the summonses;

          6  the cars that are parked on the streets of the City

          7  of New York, those are the automobiles that are

          8  getting summonses, and that's what we're trying to

          9  address here with the Intro.

         10                 So, it seems to me that we're talking

         11  on two different levels here, and some disagreement

         12  over what our jurisdiction is. And I believe Council

         13  has indicated that we do have the jurisdiction on

         14  the automobiles that are parked within the City of

         15  New York.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         17  Member Gentile.

         18                 I want to thank Susan Petito and

         19  Director Valles for joining us this morning. Our

         20  best regards to Chief Scagnelli.

         21                 MR. VALLES: Thank you.

         22                 MS. PETITO: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We will now turn our

         24  attention back to proposed Intro. 205-A. We have a

         25  number of people wishing to testify.
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          2                 We'll start with a panel consisting

          3  of Gregory Brender, a representative of

          4  Assemblymember Deborah Glick, and Mark Williams from

          5  the Utility Workers Union, Local 1-2.

          6                 Good morning, gentlemen. Please

          7  proceed.

          8                 Mr. Brender.

          9                 MR. BRENDER: Thank you. My name is

         10  Gregory Brender. I'm here to read testimony for

         11  Assemblymember Deborah Glick.

         12                 As the Assemblymember representing a

         13  district which includes the Lower East Side, where

         14  Jodie Lane was tragically killed by stray voltage, I

         15  am pleased to support Intro. 205-A which will make

         16  significant improvements to the City's ability to

         17  detect and combat potentially dangerous stray

         18  voltage.

         19                 It is encouraging that last year's

         20  tragedy has led the City Council to take appropriate

         21  steps, which will hopefully prevent another death.

         22                 Intro. 205-A will require utility

         23  companies to cover all underground and street level

         24  electrical related equipment with non-conductive

         25  protective casing.
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          2                 Furthermore, it will require the

          3  utility companies create guidelines and procedures

          4  to us for annual tests to test the efficacy of these

          5  and other necessary safety measures, and provide a

          6  report of their own annual inspections to the City

          7  Council.

          8                 By making these inspections

          9  mandatory, the City can assure that work is being

         10  done.

         11                 Furthermore, it is essential that

         12  these reports be available to the public and to

         13  officials to ensure proper oversight.

         14                 I believe that the City should also

         15  require visual inspections of all electrical

         16  infrastructure so that deterioration of equipment or

         17  protective casing can be detected before there is a

         18  possibility of even low levels of stray voltage.

         19                 This way we may catch problems with

         20  pieces of infrastructure, whether it's still time to

         21  perform repairs in advance of injury.

         22                 The inclusion of surprise City

         23  inspections is an essential element. Nothing does a

         24  better job of making institutions care about keeping

         25  things up to code, than using surprise inspections
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          2  so that operations know at every moment they are

          3  responsible for every piece of equipment.

          4                 No amount of reports or inspections

          5  will make it 100 percent safe.

          6                 These new regulations will ensure

          7  that sufficient attention is paid to effective

          8  solutions to the problems posed by underground

          9  street-level electrical infrastructure.

         10                 I applaud Council Member Lopez,

         11  Chairman Liu and the Transportation Committee for

         12  taking action on this important issue, and urge the

         13  City Council and Mayor to implement these changes.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         16                 Mr. Williams.

         17                 MR. WILLIAMS: Good morning, Chairman

         18  Liu, and members of this distinguished Committee. I

         19  am Mark Williams, Business Agent and Political

         20  Director of Local 1-2 Utility Workers Union of

         21  America, AFL-CIO.

         22                 Local 1-2 represents the 8,600 rank

         23  and file union workers at the Consolidated Edison

         24  Company of New York.

         25                 Manny Hellen, president of our Local
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          2  could not be here today because he is heavily

          3  involved in post-collective bargaining work.

          4                 This past weekend, Local 1-2 reached

          5  a new agreement with Con Edison, but not before the

          6  utility giant could nickel and dime us.

          7                 But isn't that why we are here today?

          8  Because Con Edison even tries to nickel and dime 3

          9  million customers when it comes to public safety and

         10  service reliability.

         11                 Con Edison does not invest resources

         12  in its overhead and underground infrastructure.

         13  Instead, Con Edison shortchanges New York City and

         14  Westchester County residents and businesses.

         15                 Instead of reinvesting in

         16  infrastructure, Con Ed gives us aging, dangerous,

         17  malfunctioning equipment, it gives us stray voltage,

         18  manhole fires, and transformer explosions. It causes

         19  the evacuations of buildings and homes because of

         20  carbon monoxide poisoning. It tells union workers to

         21  cut corners and rush through jobs.

         22                 This is why the Transportation

         23  Committee of the City Council of New York must pass

         24  Intro. 205-A.

         25                 Local 1-2 is here today to weigh in
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          2  on Intro. 205-A. We support this proposed law, as it

          3  will ensure public safety and service reliability.

          4  It is the only way New Yorkers can confidently take

          5  the next step across the manhole cover or service

          6  box. It is the only way New York City can be

          7  guaranteed that Con Edison will inspect, maintain,

          8  repair and upgrade equipment and infrastructure.

          9                 This law is necessary because Con

         10  Edison cannot be trusted to police itself. We know

         11  Intro. 205-A is right for New York City.

         12                 Con Edison claims it already performs

         13  inspections, maintenance and repairs, and,

         14  therefore, the legislation is not required. We know

         15  all too well that if Con Edison was doing what the

         16  New York State Public Service Commission required of

         17  it, the utility giant would have no reason to oppose

         18  Intro. 205-A.

         19                 After the fatal electrocution death

         20  of Jodie Lane this past January, after the daily

         21  occurrence of manhole fires and transformer

         22  explosions, after all the problems in the electric

         23  infrastructure that have surfaced, and all of the

         24  public scrutiny and bad press, one would think that

         25  Con Edison would embrace and support Intro. 205-A.
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          2                 Con Edison officials should have

          3  offered to help write this legislation. If nothing

          4  else, Con Edison should support this legislation

          5  just for the purpose of good public relations.

          6                 But the utility giant is incapable of

          7  doing the right thing.  If they already inspect,

          8  maintain, repair and upgrade the infrastructure and

          9  their equipment, as company officials claim they do,

         10  why would Con Edison be against Intro. 205-A? We all

         11  know the answer. This is a calculating, arrogant,

         12  utility conglomerate that has little to no interest

         13  in public safety because public safety measures cost

         14  money. They don't make money.

         15                 The State Assembly has already passed

         16  legislation by a 143 to 2 margin that would mandate

         17  Con Edison to inspect, maintain, repair and upgrade

         18  its infrastructure. The bill has tremendous support

         19  in the State Senate as well. The Westchester City of

         20  Yonkers, where manhole fires and explosions have

         21  become a daily occurrence, as they are in New York's

         22  five boroughs, is also considering the same

         23  legislation.

         24                 Tragically, two Con Edison workers

         25  were severely burned when a feeder exploded in a
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          2  manhole while they were in it. Both succumbed to

          3  their injuries in recent days.

          4                 The Yonkers Fire Commissioner is fed

          5  up with the manpower having to babysit Con Edison

          6  manholes until crews are dispatched to fires and

          7  explosions. New York City's Fire Department

          8  resources are being used in much the same way.

          9                 Last year's 4,600 plus manhole fires,

         10  which was double the previous years, 2,100, will be

         11  surpassed in 2004, according to the NYFD.

         12                 While the utility giant lobbies hard

         13  against Intro. 205-A, and the State Legislation, Con

         14  Edison has petitioned the State Public Service

         15  Commission for a $1 billion electric rate increase.

         16  New Yorkers already pay the highest electric rates

         17  in the country, now Con Edison wants to pick their

         18  pockets even more, and for what? More stray voltage,

         19  more zapped dogs, more manhole fires, more

         20  explosions and carbon monoxide poisoning, and God

         21  forbid, more tragic incidents.

         22                 Local 1-2 is opposing Con Edison's

         23  proposal for a $1 billion electric rate increase,

         24  and we are recommending in a paid radio campaign

         25  that Con Edison's 3 million customers do the same.
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          2                 What did Con Edison do with its last

          3  rate increase? It gave customers stray voltages,

          4  manhole fires and explosions. You get the picture.

          5                 A $1 billion electric rate increase

          6  will hurt the economy and will force businesses to

          7  flee to New Jersey. It will force City government to

          8  provide economic inducements to keep businesses

          9  here, money that could be used for education and

         10  essential services like Fire and Police.

         11                 The legislation isn't the only thing

         12  that Con Edison is lobbying against. Local 1-2 has

         13  been fighting to be intervenors in the penalty phase

         14  of the Jodie Lane case currently before the PSC.

         15                 We want to make sure that Con Edison

         16  does not conceal any information. Con Edison is

         17  fighting equally as hard to keep Local 1-2 out of

         18  this process.

         19                 In closing, Chairman Liu, and

         20  distinguished members of this Committee, I would

         21  like to commend you all for staying with this issue

         22  and holding Con Edison accountable.

         23                 This is an opportunity to force this

         24  arrogant company to follow a policy of public safety

         25  that would truly safeguard New Yorkers.
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          2                 Thank you for making us part of this

          3  solution.

          4                 Finally, I would like to bring you up

          5  to speed on a sampling of incidences that have taken

          6  place between the April public hearing and now.

          7                 A number of buildings were evacuated

          8  in a Brooklyn neighborhood because a series of

          9  manhole explosions caused high levels of carbon

         10  monoxide to seep into the buildings. One firefighter

         11  was injured.

         12                 In Manhattan, a major underground

         13  transformer fire on 65th Street resulted in a power

         14  outage to several buildings.

         15                 On East 130th Street in the Bronx, a

         16  manhole explosion caused a fire that burned a police

         17  officers automobile, and forced the evacuation of a

         18  State juvenile facility at 4:00 a.m.

         19                 In April, a manhole cover blew,

         20  damaging part of the El structure on White Plains

         21  Road, between East 226th and 227th Streets in the

         22  Bronx. It caused damage to part of the MTA's

         23  equipment where it feeds track signals on the

         24  Elevated train.

         25                 On May 5th, on Jerome Avenue and

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Kingsbridge Road in the Bronx, a manhole cover blew,

          3  landed 13 feet away, causing damage to lighting

          4  support on the underside of the El structure.

          5                 On May 6th, a manhole exploded

          6  shooting the cover into the air and damaging a

          7  street lamp on the east corner of 178th Street in

          8  the Bronx.

          9                 On May 17th, on 192nd Street and

         10  Davidson Avenue, a manhole explosion sent the cover

         11  hurling through the air and knocked out traffic

         12  signals.

         13                 On May 31st in the Bronx, three

         14  feeders exploded in a manhole, knocking out power on

         15  166th, 167th and 168th Streets and St. Anne's

         16  Avenue. Thank God no one was in the hole like the

         17  unfortunate workers in the recent Yonkers'

         18  explosion.

         19                 Manholes explode with regularity, but

         20  Con Edison never tells the real reason. The

         21  explosion that burned the police officer's

         22  automobile was caused by a mechanical failure that

         23  could have been prevented with appropriate

         24  maintenance. Con Edison says all of these mishaps

         25  are part of the business. We say it's a lack of
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          2  maintenance, repair, inspection and upgrading. We

          3  say pass Intro. 205. Public safety and service

          4  reliability is at stake.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Williams, and thank you, Mr. Brender, for joining us

          8  this morning.

          9                 MR. BRENDER: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Any questions?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just want to

         12  tell you that you left the explosion in Avenue B

         13  between 11th Street and 12th Street in the last

         14  couple of months, you didn't include that there.

         15                 MR. WILLIAMS: Well, if I can just

         16  address that? That's only basically Bronx and

         17  Westchester. That's pretty much the area that I

         18  cover. We know that in Manhattan, Brooklyn and

         19  Queens there's a tremendous amount of explosions

         20  that happen on a regular basis. You know, just

         21  trying to keep track of it is very difficult.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, thank you for

         23  keeping track of at least the area that you cover.

         24                 MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Our final panel
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          2  consists of Susan Stetzer from Community Board 3;

          3  Gunnar Hellekson from the Jodie Lane Project; and

          4  Howard Brandstein from the Sixth Street Community

          5  Center.

          6                 Good morning, Susan. How are you?

          7                 MS. STETZER: Good morning.

          8                 Thank you for this opportunity to

          9  testify.

         10                 My name is Susan Stetzer. I'm

         11  presenting testimony for Community Board 3,

         12  Manhattan.

         13                 Jodie Lane died in Community Board 3.

         14  A majority of stray electricity incidents have

         15  occurred in the CB 3 area. This issue is a priority

         16  public safety concern. It's very real and very

         17  personal to our district.

         18                 The CBC district needs statements for

         19  Fiscal Year '06 reads:

         20                 "The tragic loss of a member of our

         21  community has forced us to become aware of the

         22  danger of stray electricity. Board 3 has the highest

         23  number of stray voltage incidents in New York City.

         24  We have not yet seen a safety plan that will

         25  adequately assure public safety on our streets,
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          2  sidewalks, and parks. CB 3 supports legislation that

          3  would require safety standards, monitoring,

          4  reporting and accountability by Con Edison and city

          5  agencies. We also support training and proper

          6  equipment for first responders. This is necessary

          7  for the protection of emergency responders, as well

          8  as necessary to save lives of people who have been

          9  injured.

         10                 Inspections are necessary, but will

         11  not proactively prevent unsafe conditions. Equipment

         12  or infrastructure that contains power conductors,

         13  including but not limited to: manhole covers,

         14  service boxes, street lamps, traffic signaling

         15  equipment and pay telephones, that are subject to

         16  contact by the public and could conduct electrical

         17  current under abnormal conditions, should be

         18  grounded."

         19                 That part is the end of our district

         20  needs statement.

         21                 Standards and procedures for safety

         22  inspections are key to whether or not they will

         23  prevent accidents. Current inspections test for

         24  leaking electricity. However, a frayed cable or

         25  faulty equipment that is likely to be dangerous five
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          2  minutes after the inspection will not be caught in

          3  this type of inspection.

          4                 Once-a-year inspections will also not

          5  prevent accidents that occur from faulty equipment

          6  that will inevitably occur between inspections.

          7                 Con Edison does inspect equipment

          8  while performing other work, but this is not on an

          9  organized and thorough basis.

         10                 Intro. 205-A requires the

         11  establishment of an educational campaign aimed at

         12  providing the public with information from the

         13  annual report of inspections and repairs.

         14                 CB 3 has passed a resolution asking

         15  for a public accountability and public report.

         16                 And educational campaign shall

         17  include information regarding how the public should

         18  report problems and should include City monitoring

         19  of these problems.

         20                 Currently there are no reports, so we

         21  do not know if problems are resolved.

         22                 Our community board receives calls

         23  regarding potential danger spots and requests for

         24  information. We are a voice for service problems in

         25  our district and need to be included in planning for
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          2  educational campaigns and reports of problems in our

          3  districts.

          4                 Regarding DOT's responsibility, as we

          5  know, the street lamp problems that occur above

          6  ground are within jurisdiction of DOT. This covers

          7  many exposed wires and missing or open doors at the

          8  base of street lamps.

          9                 It doesn't seems as if there is

         10  inspection of street lamps. We see missing or broken

         11  doors that seem to remain faulty forever.

         12                 There also doesn't seem to be

         13  priority to repairing this type of problem.

         14                 CB 3 is very concerned about public

         15  safety on our streets and sidewalks. I'm attaching

         16  several resolutions that the Board has passed. And

         17  we have also testified at previous hearings.

         18                 We hope to work with City Council,

         19  City agencies and Con Edison to plan for public

         20  safety and eliminate stray electricity hazards to

         21  the fullest extent possible.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Ms.

         24  Stetzer.

         25                 Mr. Hellekson.
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          2                 MR. HELLEKSON: Hi there. I'm Gunnar

          3  Hellekson from the Jodie Lane Project, but I'm going

          4  to be reading a statement from Roger Lane, Jodie

          5  Lane's father.

          6                 As the father of Jodie S. Lane, who

          7  was killed on January 16th, 2004 as a result of

          8  stray voltage from a Consolidated Edison manhole

          9  cover, I want to express my support for Intro.

         10  205-2004.

         11                 I believe that the practices which

         12  will be required by this legislation would have gone

         13  a long way to have prevented my daughter's death.

         14  While I believe that many of these practices are now

         15  being followed, and that more and better

         16  preventative measures and warning solutions are

         17  certain to emerge, it is important that a strong

         18  legislative and regulatory protocol be put in place

         19  to ensure compliance. Most important of all, the

         20  public, through its administrative and regulatory

         21  agencies, must have a voice in the development and

         22  enforcement of these practices and procedures.

         23                 Please honor Jodie's memory by

         24  supporting this legislation.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Hellekson. Please convey our deepest sympathies to

          4  Mr. Roger Lane. It's unfortunate that this issue was

          5  not taken up until Jodie was tragically killed in

          6  that accident. We certainly will do what we can. We

          7  do believe that this legislation is important, and

          8  we will push forward with it, in the memory of

          9  Jodie, and perhaps we will name it Jodie's Law.

         10                 Mr. Brandstein.

         11                 MR. BRANDSTEIN: Yes. My name is

         12  Howard Brandstein. I'm the Executive Director of

         13  Sixth Street Community Center.

         14                 First, thank you for aggressively

         15  pursuing this, Council Member Lopez and the other

         16  Council members. Our community really needs

         17  legislation, strong legislation. I had the ability

         18  to witness Con Edison's negligence firsthand at the

         19  manhole cover right adjacent to our community center

         20  at the end of May. There was a waterline break which

         21  knocked out the electricity in our building. We

         22  called our electrician. He in turn called Con Edison

         23  where the problem was in the street.

         24                 When Con Ed came, they struggled to

         25  open up the manhole cover, which according to the
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          2  worker, hadn't been opened in over 25 years. And I

          3  was, not being familiar with this issue, was

          4  astounded to see the condition underneath this

          5  manhole cover. It was completely filled with debris,

          6  dirt, dust, and garbage. Con Ed had to call in

          7  another truck, a vacuum kind of truck to clean out

          8  this manhole cover, and then we were able to see

          9  what actually the manhole cover, the manhole looked

         10  like. I think it's really critical to see what's

         11  actually in these manholes, and it was a morass of

         12  wires, all of them were missing considerable pieces

         13  of insulation, and the rest of the insulation was

         14  corroded. There were copper wires and lead wires

         15  less than an inch apart, which I understand if they

         16  touch would cause a shortage or an explosion. So, I

         17  was really shocked to see that.

         18                 I think the crux of the issue is

         19  this: In the sense this was a blessing in disguise

         20  having this power outage in our building, otherwise

         21  we never would have known that we could potentially

         22  be confronted with a really serious situation.

         23                 Testing for stray voltage and telling

         24  people they're safe, without the necessary

         25  inspections, repairs and upgrades, is like telling
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          2  someone who is sitting on a time bomb that they're

          3  safe because it hasn't blown up yet, okay?

          4                 So, it's really critical that we look

          5  at it, and I think the bill does get to this issue,

          6  and I think that was the crux of Council Member

          7  Lopez's questions to what's going on under the

          8  streets? It's not enough for Con Ed to say, yeah, we

          9  tested 250,000 manhole covers and electric boxes,

         10  that's totally inadequate, and if the Department of

         11  Transportation simply comes behind Con Ed and does

         12  the same thing, I'm afraid that will be inadequate

         13  as well.

         14                 So, after Jodie Lane's tragic death,

         15  I think we all would have expected to see Con Ed

         16  trucks systematically plying the streets, right? And

         17  lifting up these manhole covers, okay, and

         18  inspecting each one systematically. That's what one

         19  would really think would occur behind somebody

         20  getting killed.

         21                 I haven't seen that in my

         22  neighborhood. The worker, the emergency worker who

         23  came to do the repair in the manhole cover next to

         24  our center said that Lower East Side, East Village

         25  was a big problem, Chelsea was a problem, and Harlem
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          2  was a problem. That's what he told me, because I

          3  guess the systems are very old in those

          4  neighborhoods.

          5                 We had wiring from the 1920s in that

          6  manhole cover, underneath that manhole cover,

          7  according to this emergency worker.

          8                 So, where is the money going? You

          9  know, I think we have to look at that. And why has

         10  Con Ed slashed their labor force over the years?

         11  They need hundreds, if not thousands of more workers

         12  to do the kind of work that's necessary to ensure

         13  the safety of us, all New Yorkers, and I think we

         14  need to look at that whole labor issue with Con Ed.

         15  It's very important.

         16                 And, finally, I want to just mention

         17  this about the legislation. We, of course, support

         18  this critical legislation. It's vital. However,

         19  there's no penalties and there are no fees in the

         20  legislation if Con Ed doesn't do what they have to

         21  do. I don't know what it takes to create that kind

         22  of language, but it was just something that jumped

         23  out at me.

         24                 I think we also need to consider

         25  putting Con Ed in receivership if they can't do the
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          2  kind of work they need to do. I don't know what kind

          3  of cooperation is required with the State and the

          4  Public Service Commission, clearly there has to be

          5  some kind of penalty and some ultimate penalty of

          6  changing the management of this Corporation if our

          7  lives are endangered.

          8                 So, again, we support this bill, and

          9  we appreciate everything that the Council is doing

         10  on this, and we'll be here to help out in any way we

         11  can.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Brandstein. I want to thank all of you for being

         15  with us this morning.

         16                 Yes, a question from --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just want to

         18  thank my community for supporting my efforts in here

         19  and for all of us to try to resolve this problem,

         20  particularly because our community has been

         21  basically under siege by Con Edison, by the

         22  expansion of 14th Street facility, where this

         23  company continue not to want to protect us but want

         24  to exploit us. It's time to finish with this

         25  nonsense.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you for

          3  joining us this morning. There being no other

          4  witnesses, this hearing of the Transportation

          5  Committee is adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 11:40 a.m.)
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